

**BYLAWS OF THE
SNOHOMISH COUNTY REPUBLICAN CENTRAL COMMITTEE
Adopted May 22nd, 2010
As Amended June 4, 2011**

Article 1 – Name

The name of the organization is the “Snohomish County Republican Central Committee”, hereafter referred to as the “Central Committee.” The Central Committee is established pursuant to RCW 29A.80.030. The Central Committee may do business under the names “Republican Party of Snohomish County”, “Snohomish County Republican Party” or “Snohomish County GOP”.

Article 2 – Purpose

The purpose of the Central Committee shall be to:

- 2.1** Administer those functions conferred on it by the Revised Code of Washington (RCW) and the Washington State Republican Party (State Committee).
- 2.2** Help elect Republican candidates to federal, State, municipal and county offices.
- 2.3** Identify and recruit voters, volunteers, and candidates for public and party office.
- 2.4** Provide the finances and programs to meet the above-stated purposes.
- 2.5** Develop leadership skills in the membership that prepare them for participation in Party activities.
- 2.6** Promote the Snohomish County Republican Party as a viable organization to affect county public policy.

Article 3 – Central Committee

The Central Committee is organized under the provisions of Title 29A RCW, as provided for under these Bylaws and in consideration of the Washington State Republican Party Bylaws.

3.1 Membership

a. Officers and Members

- 1) The Chairman, Vice Chairman, State Committeeman, and State Committeewoman shall be the Officers and members of the Central Committee. The Secretary, Treasurer, Legislative District Chairmen and Standing Committee Chairmen shall also be members of the Central Committee.
- 2) When any of the above members are not elected or duly appointed PCOs, they shall be members without vote, except the Chairman (or Vice Chairman if presiding) shall have the authority to cast a vote only to break a tie on any matter before the Central Committee.

b. Precinct Committee Officers

- 1) Precinct Committee Officers, hereinafter referred to as PCOs, certified by the Snohomish County Auditor as having been elected at the most recent even-year primary election, shall be voting members of the Central Committee and shall be the only voting members at the biennial organization meeting.
- 2) PCOs shall be appointed by the Central Committee Chairman to fill vacancies only after the Central Committee and applicable Legislative District organization meetings have been

completed. Appointed PCOs shall be voting members of the Central Committee with all the rights and privileges thereof.

- 3) Changes in the RCW or State Republican Party Bylaws regarding the election, term, or any other aspect of PCO membership in the Central Committee shall automatically be incorporated in these Bylaws.

3.2 Duties

The Central Committee shall:

- a) Elect the Central Committee Chairman (who shall be a member of the State Committee), Vice Chairman (who shall be of the opposite sex unless such requirement shall have been removed from the RCW or invalidated by higher authority), State Committeeman and State Committeewoman by secret ballot at the biennial organization meeting.
- b) When in session, any member of the Central Committee may request explanation of any action/s taken or contemplated by the Executive Board. The Executive Board Chairman and/or other members of the Executive Board shall provide an explanation of the action addressed. Any Central Committee action or direction with regard to the issue shall be addressed by written resolution submitted to the body for consideration.
- c) Participate in the political activities of the Snohomish County Republican Party.
- d) Hold and attend their respective precinct caucus as provided for in the State Committee rules.
- e) Nominate, by applicable jurisdiction, a replacement slate of candidates for partisan elected public office when such office is vacated for any reason.
- f) Elect a new Central Committee officer when a vacancy occurs.

3.3 Vacancies

The position of PCO is considered vacant when:

- a) No one was certified as being elected by the County Auditor or appointed by the County Chairman; or
- b) The County Auditor creates a new precinct; or
- c) The PCO is no longer a resident of the precinct (provided that no elected or appointed PCO shall be removed from office by virtue of precinct boundary adjustment); or
- d) The PCO submits a signed dated letter of resignation to the Central Committee Chairman or Legislative District Chairman. Any such letter of resignation shall become effective immediately upon receipt by the Central Committee Chairman or Legislative District Chairman.

Article 4 - Executive Board

4.1 Elected and Appointed Members

Members of the Executive Board must be Republicans residing in Snohomish County and be registered voters therein. Legislative District Chairmen may satisfy requirements of residence by residing in the Legislative District they represent and being registered voters therein.

4.2 Composition of the Executive Board

The Central Committee Officers, Legislative District Chairmen, Secretary, Treasurer, and appointed Standing Committee Chairmen shall be voting members of the Executive Board.

4.3 Duties

- a) Manage the affairs of the Central Committee.
- b) Exercise the powers and perform the duties of the Central Committee between meetings of the Central Committee except as expressly exempted by these Bylaws.
- c) Assure the timely accomplishment of Central Committee programs.
- d) Approve:
 - 1) The annual budget and Chairman's Programs and Objectives.
 - 2) Signatories on Central Committee bank accounts.
 - 3) Expenditures in excess of the approved budget.
 - 4) Obligations, expenditures, or contracts in excess of \$1,000.
 - 5) Central Committee Chairman appointments to fill any vacancy that has occurred excepting PCO appointments.
 - 6) Central Committee Chairman's proposal to hire an Executive Director, any contract person, or employee.
- e) Adopt rules, policies, and resolutions to maximize the effectiveness of the Central Committee organization, programs, and finances, except that no finances shall be used for referenda or initiatives that pertain on a statewide level unless the State Committee has endorsed such issues.
- f) Assist the Central Committee Chairman.
- g) Assure Central Committee and Legislative District Committee financial books are audited yearly.

4.4 Vacancies

A position on the Executive Board shall be considered vacant when:

- a) A member no longer meets residence requirements.
- b) A written signed and dated resignation is submitted to the Executive Board Chairman.
- c) An officer is removed as herein provided.
- d) A Legislative District Committee Chairman is removed from office as herein provided.
- e) The Executive Board Chairman removes an appointed member.

Article 5 – Officers, Secretary, and Treasurer

The Chairman, Vice Chairman, State Committeeman, and State Committeewoman are the Officers of the Central Committee and the Executive Board.

5.1 Chairman

- a) The Chairman shall be the Chief Executive Officer of the Central Committee and shall preside at all meetings of the Executive Board and Central Committee. The Chairman shall be responsible for the proper functions of all officers, Executive Board members, committees, contract personnel, and any employees of the Central Committee.
- b) The Chairman shall approve (or delegate such authority to another Executive Board member from time to time) all Central Committee expenditures. At no time shall the Chairman be a signatory on any Central Committee financial account.
- c) Upon assuming office, the Central Committee Chairman shall appoint a Secretary, Treasurer, and Chairmen of Standing Committees, with the approval of the elected members of the Executive Board. The names and functions of those Standing Committees shall be determined by the Chairman with the approval of the elected members of the Executive Board.
- d) The total number of appointed members of the Executive Board may not exceed eight.

- e) The Chairman may appoint such special committees as are deemed necessary to conduct the affairs of the Central Committee.
- f) The Chairman shall be an ex-officio member of all Standing and Special Committees.
- g) Conflict of Interest: The Chairman shall not conduct or authorize party business with any business in which he/she or any Executive Board member holds any financial interest, direct or indirect, unless approved by a majority of the Executive Board.
- h) Duties:
 - 1) Represent the Central Committee, in person or by proxy (assigned first to the Vice Chairman, second to another voting member of the Executive Board and following, at his discretion) at all meetings of the State Committee.
 - 2) Submit a Statement of Objectives each year to the Executive Board by February 28.
 - 3) Submit an Operating and Capital Budget by March 25 of each year.
 - 4) Assign signatories for all bank accounts, with the approval of the Executive Board.
 - 5) Be the official spokesman for the Central Committee.
 - 6) Give a Chairman's Report at all Executive Board and Central Committee meetings.
 - 7) Appoint PCOs in precincts where the position is vacant (per RCW 29A.28.071) and consider input from the Legislative District Committee Chairman when making such appointments.
 - 8) Coordinate Legislative District Committee activities.
 - 9) Ensure members of the Executive Board, volunteers, and any employees have the appropriate written description of their duties and responsibilities.
 - 10) Make interim appointments to fill Elected Executive Board position vacancies until the appropriate elections are held.
 - 11) Issue a call to the Central Committee or appropriate Legislative District Committee within thirty (30) days of a vacancy occurring among the elected members of the Executive Board.
 - 12) Represent the Central Committee on Congressional District organizations and clubs.
 - 13) Ensure all Central Committee documents, financial records, and operational data are retained and secured by Central Committee Headquarters, with current operational documents held at the Central Committee Headquarters.
 - 14) Be responsible for surrendering promptly and in good order all records and property of the Central Committee and Executive Board to the successor Executive Board.

5.2 Vice Chairman

The Vice Chairman shall assist the Chairman in the administration of his/her duties:

- a) Preside at all meetings of the Central Committee and Executive Board in the absence of the Chairman.
- b) Perform such duties and coordinate such activities as assigned by the Chairman.
- c) Temporarily assume the office of the Chairman when that office becomes vacant.
- d) Issue a call to the Central Committee for a special meeting within thirty (30) days after the office of Central Committee Chairman becomes vacant for any reason for the purpose of electing a successor Central Committee Chairman. Should a quorum not be attained at such special meeting of the Central Committee, the Central Committee Vice Chairman shall serve as the interim Central Committee Chairman until a successor Central Committee Chairman is elected at a subsequent special or regular meeting of the Central Committee to be scheduled as determined by the Executive Board.

5.3 State Committeeman and State Committeewoman

- a) The State Committeeman and State Committeewoman shall be members of the State Committee per RCW 29A.80.020 and shall attend, either in person or by proxy, all meetings of the State

- Committee. They shall report to the Executive Board and the Central Committee, such report to be an agenda item at each meeting of each body.
- b) The State Committeeman and State Committeewoman shall represent the Central Committee on the State Executive Board (in seats allotted to Congressional District One (1) per State Committee Bylaws) and shall attend all meetings of the State Executive Board either in person or by proxy and report to the County Executive Board and Central Committee, such report to be an agenda item at each meeting of each body.
 - c) Perform such other duties in representation of the Central Committee as may be assigned or approved by the Central Committee, Central Committee Chairman, or Executive Board.

5.4 Secretary

The Secretary shall be the secretary of both the Central Committee and the Executive Board and shall serve at the Chairman's pleasure.

Duties:

- a) Keep complete and accurate minutes of all proceedings of each body.
- b) Deliver a copy of the minutes of Executive Board meetings to voting members within fifteen (15) days of each meeting and to any PCO upon request.
- c) Make available a copy of the minutes of each "open" Central Committee meeting fifteen (15) days after the meeting is concluded, upon a request from a voting member.
- d) Be responsible for keeping all records of the Central Committee and Executive Board and promptly surrendering the same, in good order, to a successor.
- e) Be responsible for development and maintenance of a contact file for each member of the Central Committee, Executive Board and such other organizations as determined by the Executive Board.
 - 1) The contact file will be the primary reference resource for communication, meeting call, notification and consist of each individual's position/office, residence address, residence telephone number, cell telephone number, email address and any additional or alternate contact information provided by the individual.
 - 2) The contact list shall be for official use only by the Central Committee, Executive Board and Legislative District Committees.
 - 3) Verification of contact list entries shall be accomplished annually and in any case where an individual's contact information is known to have changed.

5.5 Treasurer

The Treasurer shall record all receipts and disbursements and pay all financial obligations of the Central Committee approved by the Chairman (or the assigned designee) and/or the Executive Board. All supporting paper and electronic documentation shall be maintained in appropriate files only at the Central Committee headquarters.

Duties

- a) Open and maintain, at the direction of the Chairman, one or more Central Committee bank accounts for the purpose of receiving and disbursing Central Committee funds.
- b) Prepare Income/Expense Statements, Bank Balances, Year-to-Date and Budget Variance reports for the Central Committee and Executive Board.
- c) Prepare and file all State and County disclosure forms, in addition to any other federal, State, or local financial reports that may be required, on behalf of Central Committee activities or employees.

- d) Surrender the books upon the request of the Chairman or Executive Board for audit. The books shall be audited once a calendar year, or in the event that the position of the Treasurer becomes vacant.
- e) Surrender the books in good order to any appointed successor.

Article 6 – Meetings

6.1 Meetings

- a) The Executive Board Chairman shall make appropriate arrangements for all Central Committee, Executive Board, Organization, caucus and convention meetings and any “special” meeting.
- b) Cumulative voting or unit rule voting shall not be allowed at any meeting, caucus, or convention. Proxy voting is not allowed at any organization meeting.
- c) The Central Committee shall meet for an organization meeting no sooner than the first day of the newly elected PCOs term of office as defined in the RCW and not later than the second Saturday of the following January as prescribed by RCW 29A.80.30.
- d) Thereafter, the Central Committee shall meet at least twice each year at intervals of approximately six (6) months, the date and time to be set by the Central Committee Chairman.
- e) A Special meeting shall be called when thirty percent (30%) of the Central Committee or fifty percent (50%) of the Executive Board requests such a meeting by petition delivered in writing or by electronic means to the Central Committee Chairman.
- f) The Executive Board shall meet no less than ten (10) times per year. All such meetings shall be open to Precinct Committee Officers.
- g) A special meeting of the Executive Board may be called by the Executive Board Chairman with a minimum five (5) day written or electronic notice, or minimum forty-eight (48) hour telephone notice given to all Executive Board members.
- h) Snohomish County Republican Party Conventions shall be held and conducted in accordance with State Committee Bylaws, rules established by the State Committee for such conventions and in accordance with such other conforming rules as may be adopted by the Snohomish County Republican Party Central Committee.
- i) Prior to the County Convention, the Central Committee shall provide for legislative or councilmanic district caucuses.
- j) A listing of all Central Committee, Executive Board, Legislative District Committee meetings and all County Caucuses, County Conventions and State Conventions shall be published on the Snohomish County GOP website as soon as administratively possible (within five (5) business days) after being scheduled or the issue of a call. Time, date and location of the event shall be specified in the posting.

6.2 Calls

- a) An official call to the biennial Central Committee Organization Meeting shall be sent only to newly elected PCOs and currently serving Central Committee officers.
- b) Calls shall be sent to all voting members and officers of the Central Committee a minimum of fifteen (15) days prior to all Central Committee meetings, legislative district meetings, special-called or required special-purpose meetings. Appointed PCOs shall also be sent a call to Central Committee meetings other than organizational meetings.
- c) For the County Convention and any Legislative District caucuses, the call shall be sent, at least fifteen (15) days prior to said events, to all credentialed delegates, alternates and PCOs.

6.3 Quorums:

- a) For an Executive Board meeting, a quorum is a majority of the voting Executive Board members. For Central Committee meetings, a quorum is thirty-five percent (35%) of those qualified to vote. Additionally, a quorum of forty percent (40%) of those qualified to vote shall be required for consideration by the Central Committee of any proposed amendment to these bylaws.
- b) A quorum is required to conduct any business at all Executive Board, Central Committee, Legislative District Committee meetings, and Conventions. Failure to achieve a quorum at any properly called meeting of the Executive Board, Central Committee or a Legislative District does not prevent the properly called meeting from “counting” as a meeting for the purpose of complying with any periodic or annual meeting requirements. However, all business properly scheduled for a meeting at which a quorum was not achieved shall be automatically carried forward to the next regular or special meeting.

6.4 Proxies

- a) An Executive Board voting member may be represented by a proxy with notice either in writing, electronic communication, or by phone to the Chairman. Said proxy shall have the same residence requirement as the absent member.
- b) With the exception of the organization meeting, an absent PCO may be represented at a Central Committee meeting or Legislative District meeting by proxy; provided, the proxy is in writing, signed by the PCO, and held by a qualified voter from the same precinct.

Article 7 – Legislative Districts

Legislative Districts either wholly or partially contained within Snohomish County are subsidiary entities of the Central Committee organized pursuant to applicable section/s of the RCW, State Committee Bylaws and these Bylaws.

- 7.1** A Legislative District Committee is hereby established, or confirmed if established in State Committee Bylaws or Rules, in each legislative district existing in whole or in part within Snohomish County. A Legislative District Committee so established and no other committee, is the Legislative District Committee of the Republican Party for the purposes of RCW 42.17.020(6)(c).
- 7.2** The purpose of a Legislative District Committee is to coordinate Republican Party activities within the district.
- 7.3** The outgoing Central Committee Chairman shall issue an official call to biennial legislative district committee organization meetings to be held concurrently with the Central Committee reorganization meeting. Said call shall be sent only to those PCOs elected at the most recent primary election and sent no later than fifteen (15) days prior to this meeting.
- 7.4** A Legislative District Committee may also adopt Bylaws. A Legislative District Executive Board may adopt rules, policies, and resolutions in support of its activities. Such Legislative District Committee Bylaws, rules and policies shall meet the requirements of the RCW, State Committee Bylaws, and these Bylaws.
- 7.5** A Legislative District Committee Chairman and Vice Chairman shall be elected at the biennial Legislative District Committee reorganizational meeting (Re. RCW 29A.80.061). Legislative District Officers must be registered voters residing in their respective Districts.
- 7.6** Upon assuming office, the Legislative District Committee Chairman shall appoint or have elected a District Secretary and Treasurer (who each must be a registered voter residing within the District) and shall establish a district bank account(s) for the purpose of collecting and disbursing district funds.

7.7 The District Chairman, Vice Chairman, Secretary, and Treasurer shall be the District officers and, unless any are also elected or duly appointed PCOs, they shall serve without vote at any District meeting. However, they may vote at District Executive Board meetings.

7.8 Chairman Duties

- a) Establish a district committee organization and meeting plan.
- b) Preside over district committee meetings.
- c) Assign at least two (2) eligible signatories for the district committee bank accounts, except the Chairman shall not be a signatory on any district committee accounts.
- d) Approve all district committee expenses.
- e) Identify and recruit PCOs and Precinct Captains.
- f) Recommend candidates for appointments by the Central Committee Chairman to vacant PCO positions.
- g) Report district activities at each Central Committee Executive Board meeting, either in person, by proxy, or by written report.
- h) Submit copies of district committee meeting minutes and treasurer reports to the Central Committee Executive Board quarterly.
- i) Support fundraising efforts for district committee activities.
- j) Conduct a district committee meeting at least quarterly.
- k) Assist in candidate recruitment for all local, State and Congressional offices.
- l) Recruit volunteers to serve on Central Committee Standing and Special Committees.
- m) Appoint an interim Legislative District Committee Vice Chairman in the event of a vacancy in that position and call a special meeting within thirty (30) days for the purpose of electing a successor Vice Chairman.
- n) Fulfill other duties as may be assigned by the Executive Board Chairman or Legislative District Committee.
- o) Appoint other assistants as needed.

7.9 Vice Chairman Duties

The Vice Chairman shall assist the Chairman in the administration of his/her duties:

- a) Preside at all meetings of the Legislative District Committee in the absence of the Chairman.
- b) Perform such duties and coordinate such activities as assigned by the Chairman.
- c) Temporarily assume the office of the Chairman should that office become vacant.
- d) Issue a call for a special meeting of the Legislative District Committee within thirty (30) days after the office of Legislative District Committee Chairman becomes vacant for the purpose of electing a successor chairman.

7.10 Secretary Duties

- a) The Secretary shall keep accurate and complete minutes of the district and any other committee meetings or caucuses. Copies of such minutes will be available to all PCOs within fifteen (15) days of a meeting upon request and presented at the next meeting for acceptance into the record.
- b) The Secretary shall ensure notice of all district or other committee meetings with agenda is sent to the elected and appointed PCOs no later than fifteen (15) days prior to such meeting.
- c) The District Secretary shall be responsible for ensuring that a copy of any District Bylaws and Rules are forwarded to the Central Committee Chairman within seven (7) days of adoption or of any amendments.

7.11 Treasurer Duties

- a) Record all receipts and disbursements and pay all financial obligations of the district approved by the Chairman.
- b) Prepare income/expense and bank balance reports for each district meeting.
- c) File all state and county disclosure forms and any required financial data required by a government agency.
- d) Surrender the books in good order at the request of the District Chairman or the Central Committee Chairman for audit. The books shall be audited/reviewed once a year or upon vacancy of the office.
- e) Provide Legislative District Committee books for review yearly by the Central Committee Treasurer.
- f) Surrender the books in good order to an appointed or elected replacement.

7.12 Vacancies

- a) The office of the Legislative District Committee Chairman or Vice Chairman shall be considered vacant when either is no longer a resident of the district, resigns in writing to the Central Committee Chairman, or is removed from office as herein provided in this Article.
- b) In the event that the District Chairman fails to call a District Committee meeting at least once a quarter, the position of District Committee Chairman shall be considered vacant.
- c) When a vacancy occurs in the office of Legislative District Committee Chairman, the Legislative District Committee Vice Chairman shall serve as temporary Legislative District Committee Chairman until a successor Legislative District Committee Chairman is elected. If a vacancy occurs in the office of Vice Chairman, the District Committee Chairman may appoint a temporary Vice Chairman and shall call a Legislative District Committee meeting within thirty (30) days for the purpose of electing a successor Legislative District Committee Vice Chairman. The notice of this meeting shall be sent to all elected and duly appointed PCOs no later than fifteen (15) days preceding such a meeting.

7.13 Removal from Office

- a) A Legislative District Committee may remove from office an elected Chairman or Vice Chairman for any cause deemed sufficient by a two-thirds (2/3) majority of the committee in session.
- b) A Legislative District Committee meeting shall be called by the Central Committee Chairman within ten (10) days of receipt of a petition for removal (individual and/or collective in any recordable form with this section stated in the petition) submitted to the Central Committee Chairman by fifty percent (50%) of the Legislative District PCOs. Said call shall be sent no later than fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting. A quorum shall be present before any proceedings occur.
- c) The Chairman or Vice Chairman considered for removal shall be notified of the intended removal and cause in writing fifteen (15) days prior to the meeting and shall be given full and fair opportunity to present evidence and argument in his/her behalf.
- d) An Officer being considered for removal shall not chair this meeting.

Article 8 - Removal of Central Committee Officers

- 8.1** A Central Committee Officer may be removed from office for any cause by a two-thirds (2/3) vote at any meeting of the Central Committee or at a special meeting called by fifty percent (50%) of the

Central Committee members for that purpose. A quorum shall be present before any proceedings occur.

- 8.2** The Officer being considered for removal shall be notified of the intended removal and cause in writing fifteen (15) days before the convening of the Central Committee meeting. The Officer shall be given full and fair opportunity to present evidence and argument in his/her behalf.
- 8.3** An Officer being considered for removal shall not chair this meeting.

Article 9 – Authority

- 9.1** The statutory authority for establishment of the Snohomish County Central Committee is the RCW.
- 9.2** These Bylaws supersede all previously adopted and or amended Bylaws of the Central Committee. They shall remain in effect until they are amended or superseded by newly adopted Bylaws adopted by the then sitting Central Committee.
- 9.3** The parliamentary authority for the Central Committee, and the Executive Board is "*Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised*."
- a) *Robert's Rules* shall determine any question not covered in these By-Laws for procedures or conduct at meetings of the Central Committee, the Executive Board and at meetings of any committees or subcommittees of those bodies.
- b) *Robert's Rules* may be temporarily suspended at any meeting by two-thirds affirmative vote of the voting members present. A return to the rules must be established by ruling of the chair or by majority vote prior to the conduct of any business of the body.
- 9.4** In the event of conflict between these authorities, the ranking of authority for the Central Committee shall be the RCW in matters of Law, and for all other issues, these By-Laws, and then "*Robert's Rules of Order, Newly Revised*."

Article 10 – Endorsements

- 10.1** Neither the Central Committee, nor the Executive Board shall endorse products or services, though either may respond to queries from potential users about products or services it has used.
- 10.2** All endorsements made by either the Central Committee or Executive Board shall be made in the name of the "Snohomish County Republican Party".
- 10.3** The Snohomish County Republican Party may endorse multiple candidates for any office or position.
- 10.4** Only those candidates and ballot measures specifically endorsed by the Snohomish County Republican Party are authorized to claim such endorsement.
- 10.5** At a regular Central Committee meeting held before the Snohomish County candidate/ballot filing period, the Central Committee will determine action to be taken on all endorsements pending as of the beginning of the meeting. Should endorsement determinations not be completed at the Central Committee meeting, remaining endorsements will be deferred to the Executive Board.
- a) A Special Meeting of the Central Committee shall not be called for the sole purpose of addressing the question of endorsements unless the cost of such a special meeting is born by the candidates desiring to address the Central Committee in session; however, consideration of all pending endorsements shall be added to the agenda of any regular or special meeting of the Central Committee called for other purposes.
- b) All endorsements will receive a separate and individual consideration.
- c) All endorsements will be determined by a simple majority vote to approve, disapprove, or refer to the Executive Board for determination.
- d) When endorsement of a Congressional candidate is considered at a Central Committee meeting, only those members residing within the candidate's Congressional District will consider that endorsement and other members shall be recused from that endorsement consideration.
- 10.6** When candidates for election or appointment request an endorsement, or a candidate is to be

considered for endorsement without request, or endorsements are to be considered for ballot measures, the Executive Board Chairman or his designee shall provide the Central Committee with a list of endorsements to be considered. The endorsement consideration list is to be sent via email and may contain the Executive Board's recommendation on any listed endorsement.

- 10.7** When a Central Committee meeting is not available for the timely consideration of an endorsement, the Executive Board Chairman or his designee shall Issue an "Endorsement Consideration Poll" by electronic means (i.e. email) to the Central Committee to poll the Central Committee on separate consideration of each currently pending endorsement.
- a) The Endorsement Consideration Poll shall provide for indication of either; "Support Endorsement", "Decline Endorsement" or "Executive Board Proxy" as response options for each candidate and/or ballot issue being considered for endorsement.
 - b) From date of issue, members of the Central Committee shall have five (5) business days to submit a response to an Endorsement Consideration Poll.
 - c) An Endorsement Consideration Poll shall be reissued each business day during the poll response period.
 - d) Endorsement Consideration Poll responses meeting quorum requirements of the Central Committee shall constitute a valid poll with a majority of responses required for any endorsement.
 - e) Should the number of Endorsement Consideration Poll responses not constitute a quorum of the Central Committee within the polling response period, the members of the Executive Board serving in elected positions may determine the disposition of polled endorsements by majority vote with due consideration of input from any member/s of the Central Committee.
- 10.8** The Snohomish County Republican Party, in the form of either the Central Committee or Executive Board, is an independent entity and, as such, will consider endorsements of any candidate or ballot issue pertaining solely or partly within the geographical boundaries of Snohomish County without the requirement or obligation to confer with any other entity except the Snohomish County Legislative District Committees.
- 10.9** The Snohomish County Legislative District Committees will determine endorsements for all candidates and ballot measures where all Snohomish County balloting will be entirely within the Snohomish County boundaries of the Legislative District. If any Snohomish County Legislative District Committee does not make an endorsement of a candidate or ballot measure then the Central Committee or the Executive Board may make endorsements of these candidates or ballot measures. Neither the Central Committee nor the Executive Board may make endorsements that conflict with endorsements made by a Snohomish County Legislative District Committee.
- 10.10** Endorsements of candidates or ballot measures pertaining to geographic areas wholly outside Snohomish County may be made by either the Central Committee or Executive Board only after the Executive Board Chairman or his designee confers with the appropriate County Republican Party Executive Board and reports on that contact to the Snohomish County Central Committee or Executive Board prior to consideration of such endorsement.
- 10.11** Any candidate may request an endorsement from the Snohomish County Republican Party and any candidate may be offered an endorsement; however, any candidate endorsement must be acceptable to the candidate before it is made.

Article 11 – Standing Rules

The Executive Board may adopt Standing Rules to govern the conduct of business of the Snohomish County Republican Party provided they are consistent with these Bylaws. Such Standing Rules may be implemented subject to approval or amendment at the next Central Committee Meeting.

Article 12 – Communication, Notification, Call

All available forms of communication shall be considered in an effort to conserve Legislative District Committee and Central Committee resources, enhance staff productivity and support participation by volunteers. Reliability is essential in all forms of communication used to meet requirements of notification and call.

12.1 Calls

- a) Methods of issuing a call required by RCW, State Committee Bylaws or rules or by these Bylaws shall include electronic mail (email), U.S. Postal Service mail, electronic facsimile (fax) and personal contact telephone notification (not recording).
- b) Calls may be issued initially by any approved method in compliance with the applicable time requirements except in the case of call to a biennial organizational meeting, which shall be issued using U.S. Postal Service mail in the first instance.
- c) In the case of call to a biennial organizational meeting, information on how to electronically download relevant documents shall be included in the call along with a description of an alternative procedure for receiving documents by making a telephone request.
- d) If initial call is issued by email or fax, a receipt of the call must be acknowledged as accepted notification within a reasonable period of time to allow for follow-up notification should no receipt be received by the calling authority.
- e) When a call is issued by email, any documents required or desired to be included in the call shall be included as .pdf file format attachments to the email.
- f) When a call is issued by fax, it shall include any required or desired documents or notification where such documents in .pdf format can be electronically downloaded.
- g) Failing receipt notification of an initial call sent by email or fax, follow-up telephone notification of call may be attempted until the day of the event.
- h) In cases where initial and follow-up notification by other methods have been unsuccessful, U.S. Postal Service notification shall be used for call a minimum of five (5) days prior to the call event.

12.2 Any required official notification or communication shall be conducted in the manner of Calls.

12.3 Routine or optional official communications may be conducted in the manner deemed appropriate by the issuing authority.

Article 13 – Amendments

These Bylaws may be amended by a two-thirds (2/3) vote of the quorum present at any properly called meeting of the Central Committee. Any proposed amendment shall be submitted to the Central Committee Chairman not later than thirty (30) days prior to the convening of any Central Committee meeting during which the amendment is to be considered. A copy of any proposed amendment(s) shall be provided electronically or sent to each Central Committee member with the official call.

Record of Amendments

June 4, 2011 – Article 6.3 – Adjust quorum to 35% with 40% for amendment to bylaws.